
September 22, 2017 

To: Khalid Afzal, Master Planner Supervisor,  
Montgomery County Planning Department Area 2 

Patrick Butler, Planner Coordinator 
Montgomery County Planning Department Area 2 

Via: Mitra Pedoeem, Deputy Director, Administration 
Department of Parks, Montgomery County 

John E. Hench, Ph.D., Division Chief 
Park Planning and Stewardship Division 

From: Dominic Quattrocchi, AICP, Planner Coordinator 
Park Planning and Stewardship Division 

SUBJECT: VIVA WHITE OAK 320180040, 280 ACRES, GLOBAL LIFE SCIENCE 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION / MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF GENERALSERVICES 

The Department of Parks has significant concerns with size and location of the proposed 
local park depicted in the Concept Plan Submission- 320180040. The White Oak Science 
Gateway Master Plan (approved July 2014) specifies a collocated school and local park 
for the Life Sciences/FDA Village Center. Based on MCPS and M-NCPPC standards, a 
collocated site should generally involve at minimum 15-20 acres of unconstrained land- 
not 8 acres as proposed.  

Applicable area master plan language states: 

• Provide a Local Park with a large adult-sized rectangular athletic field and other
amenities such as community gardens, dog park, basketball courts, community
open space, urban wooded areas and play areas. Provide on-street parking to the
extent possible and assume a reduction from the typical parking standards applied
by the Department of Parks, since many park users could walk or take transit. For
the athletic fields, consider synthetic turf and lighting to provide longer hours of use
and higher overall capacity. To maximize efficiencies of parking and community
use, co-locate with a proposed elementary school, which will be needed if potential
residential densities are achieved. If other potential public amenities, such as a
community meeting space or a library are proposed, also consider co-location with
the park.  (White Oak Science Gateway Master Plan (July 2014) pg. 89)
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The Department of Parks is enthusiastic about the potential benefits of colocation but 
views the sharing of an 8-acre site (4 for Parks and 4 for MCPS) as unrealistic and a 
negative acquisition for the Department of Parks. Four acres for a local park is too small 
to accommodate standard local park amenities, especially when considering the 
specificity of the master plan recommendations and recognized PROS needs for the 
White Oak area.  As MCPS minimum standard for an elementary school site is nearly 8 
acres, the Parks Department would be placed in a service delivery and maintenance 
dilemma as the school will consistently be utilizing the entire acreage for physical 
education classes, recess, and special events- effectively negating dedicated park use, 
field permitting, and the intangible but important feel of a stand-alone public park. Further, 
the MCPS has cited concerns about locating elementary schools on main roads such as 
the proposed FDA Boulevard and has also cited that 4 acres for a school site limits the 
potential for standard elementary school amenities. 
 

 
 
Figure 1: Program of Requirements (POR) and acreage recommendations for park types from 
PROS 2017 (see the Park Type Summary Chart in Chapter 2 – Policy Framework and Plan 
Foundation. Note 15 acre approximate size for Local Parks. 
 
 
 



An important consideration, part of but not limited to the Viva White Concept Plan, is the 
potential geographic inequity creation of parks and schools on undersized sites create. 
Undersized locations minimize the public benefits that less dense area of the county are 
afforded, create hardships and limited opportunities solely based on geography. The 
ability to maintain grass and provide meaningful open space, trees, and diverse public 
amenities are essentially forfeited on undersized sites. An “urban park paradigm” may 
have entered the current Planning vernacular but comes with significant consequences. 
 
Also, the concept plan for Viva White Oaks show trails, bridges, and connections in 
Paint Branch Stream Valley Park that don’t exist and that aren’t feasible. The 
Department of Parks looks forward to working with the applicant to determine 
appropriate connections through PBSVP as this project moves forward. 
 
As the Viva White Oak Concept Plan is in a preliminary stage and involves 279 acres of 
largely undeveloped land, a significant portion of which was prior public land, the 
Department of Parks is confident that there is enough design flexibility to come up with a 
larger and more appropriately located combined elementary and local park site for the 
Viva White Oak Project.  
 
 

 
 
Figure 2: Proposed Concept Plan, Public Benefits, Viva White Oak 
 




